CARSON CITY AUDIT COMMITTEE
Minutes of the July 19, 2011 Meeting
Page 1

A regular meeting of the Carson City Audit Committee was scheduled for 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, July 19,
2011 in the Community Center Sierra Room, 851 East William Street, Carson City, Nevada.

PRESENT: Chairperson William Prowse
Vice Chairperson Ken Brown
Member Michael Bertrand
Member John McKenna
Member Robert Parvin

STAFF: Nick Providenti, Finance Department Director
Tina Russom, Deputy District Attorney
Kathleen King, Deputy Clerk / Recording Secretary

NOTE: A recording of these proceedings, the committee’s agenda materials, and any written
comments or documentation provided to the recording secretary during the meeting are part of the public
record. These materials are available for review, in the Clerk’s Office, during regular business hours.

1-2. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL (3:00:43) - Vice Chairperson Brown called the meeting
to order at 3:00 p.m. Roll was called; a quorum was present.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION (3:01:08) - In reference to the presentation made,
as item 26 on the July 7, 2011 Board of Supervisors meeting agenda, Andrea Engleman expressed the
opinion that “some of the facts” provided by City Manager Larry Werner were incorrect. She requested
the committee members to consider, as part of their role, “what are the checks and balances in Carson City
...” In response to a question, she advised of having spoken with Charles Perry, “the head of the nursing
home association ...” and that nursing home fees “are capped by Medicaid and Medicare. They cannot
charge over those amounts. Those bills go directly to Medicare and ... Medicaid.” Ms. Engleman further
advised that Mr. Werner had conveyed that “the rates on utilities for the fees, the franchise fees up in Reno
were at the very maximum at 5 percent. They’re not. They’re at four percent.” Vice Chairperson Brown
entertained additional public comment; however, none was forthcoming.

4. POSSIBLE ACTION ON APPROVAL OF MINUTES - June 14, 2011 (3:03:40) - None.

5. POSSIBLE ACTIONTO ADOPT THE AGENDA (3:03:59) - Vice Chairperson Brown inquired
as to the possibility of electing a vice chair as part of item 6. Ms. Russom suggested specifically agendizing
election of a vice chair during the next committee meeting. Vice Chairperson Brown entertained a motion
to adopt the agenda. Member Bertrand moved to adopt the agenda. Member Prowse seconded the motion.
Motion carried 5-0.

6. POSSIBLEACTIONTOELECT A COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN (3:04:59) - Vice Chairperson
Brown expressed appreciation for the opportunity to have served as committee vice chair, and nominated
Michael Bertrand for committee chair. Member Parvin seconded the nomination. Member Bertrand
accepted the nomination. Vice Chairperson Brown entertained additional nominations. Member Bertrand
nominated Member Prowse as chair. Member McKenna seconded the nomination. Vice Chairperson
Brown called for a vote on the nomination for Member Bertrand, resulting in two ayes. Vice Chairperson
Brown called for a vote on the nomination for Member Prowse, resulting in three ayes. Nomination carried



CARSON CITY AUDIT COMMITTEE
Minutes of the July 19, 2011 Meeting
Page 2

3-0. In response to a question, Ms. Russom advised passing the gavel to Chairperson-elect Prowse. Vice
Chairperson Brown passed the gavel and congratulated Chairperson-elect Prowse.

7. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTIONTO DETERMINE THE FUTURE ROLE OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE (3:07:30) - Chairperson Prowse introduced this item, and entertained comment.
Member McKenna suggested allowing staff to make their presentation. Special Projects Coordinator Linda
Ritter reviewed the agenda materials. She noted that the committee was established by the Carson City
Board of Supervisors, pursuant to Chapter 2.14 of the Carson City Municipal Code, and advised that
committee recommendations would be forwarded to the Board.

Chairperson Prowse thanked Ms. Ritter for her presentation, and entertained committee member comments.
Member Bertrand thanked Ms. Ritter for the comprehensive agenda materials, and advised of having been
previously unaware of how specifically the committee’s role was “spelled out” in the Carson City
Municipal Code. He recommended accepting the committee’s role “as it’s been laid out for us and not
make any changes to that.” Vice Chairperson Brown concurred. In response to a question, Ms. Ritter
interpreted CCMC Chapter 2.14 as “focused on the financial ... It really doesn’t talk about performance
as much in a broader scope of audit having to do with effectiveness ...” She suggested that if the
committee’s direction is toward performance audits, the code may need to be amended.

Chairperson Prowse advised of a background in internal audits. In reference to Section 2.14.040(1), he
noted the “annual financial audit, performance, compliance, and efficiency audits which would seem to me
to give us a very broad fiat.” In reference to the June committee meeting, he noted that Mr. Providenti had
discussed the annual financial audit which considers internal controls. Chairperson Prowse expressed the
opinion that the committee having “as broad a set of responsibilities as possible” will be to the City’s
benefit “so that we can adjustand change as we move forward.” He concurred with Members Bertrand and
Brown relative to leaving Chapter 2.14 as itis. He suggested that Sections 2.14.020 and 2.14.040 may be
duplicate, and discussion ensued. Inresponse to a question, Ms. Russom expressed the opinion that Section
2.14.040 “is pretty clear in that it does allow for performance, compliance, and efficiency audits. So, even
though there is 2.14.020 that’s more narrow, ... when you read them together, ... it clarifies any confusion.”
Additional discussion ensued and, in response to a question, Vice Chairperson Brown suggested “leav[ing]
it where we’ve got a little broader scope rather than narrow it down.” Member McKenna suggested that
Chapter 2.14 “gives us a lot of responsibility,” but was uncertain as to whether “it gives us a method ... or
resources to meet that responsibility.” He further suggested considering a method by which to be involved
in the funding of performance, financial, compliance, and efficiency audits “and possibly some type of
mechanism where perhaps we get involved with where the auditing of the City goes; more direct contact.”
He discussed concerns that, relative to government, “the day-to-day control over financial information is
pretty rigid and it’s pretty difficult to modify ...” In reference to Section 2.14.040(2)(g), Member Bertrand
noted the committee’s role to provide recommendations relative to the budget for audits. Member
Bertrand moved to accept the role of the audit committee, as provided in the City’s ordinance. Vice
Chairperson Brown seconded the motion. Chairperson Prowse expressed agreement with Member
McKenna’s comments in that “there is some lack of definition as to ... authority ... Ultimately, ... this
ordinance could be improved on,” but he expressed concern over timing and “dealing with it piece meal.”
Chairperson Prowse called for a vote on the pending motion. Motion carried 5-0.



CARSON CITY AUDIT COMMITTEE
Minutes of the July 19, 2011 Meeting
Page 3

Chairperson Prowse expressed the opinion that the committee’s function should be further clarified. He
noted that the committee had agreed, at the June meeting, to meet on a monthly basis for an indefinite
period of time. He advised that City staff is interested in performance audit as it relates to the strategic
plan. He entertained discussion of the committee members relative to “going forward with performance
audits as our focus ...” Member Bertrand expressed support for hiring an internal auditor and then
considering how to proceed after the auditor has the opportunity to develop a risk analysis. Vice
Chairperson Brown concurred, and suggested following up on previous areas of concern and committee
recommendations. Chairperson Prowse admitted a bias, in the short-term, toward performance audit.

In response to a question, Member Bertrand discussed the importance of an internal auditor, and expressed
concern that the position has been vacant for some time. He suggested “starting up with a typical internal
audit engagement and moving into maybe performance from that point.” He reiterated that once the
internal auditor has developed a risk analysis and an audit plan, consideration can be given as to how to
proceed. Discussion followed and, in response to a question, Member Bertrand expressed the opinion that
“part of the internal audit function is to go back and take a look and test ... compliance with those
recommendations.” He expressed the further opinion that an internal auditor could review the details and
report to the committee. In consideration of the available funding, Chairperson Prowse expressed the
opinion that hiring a qualified internal auditor would be impossible. He suggested “combin[ing] the two
situations” with “an internal audit assistant; someone to support the committee and to getinvolved with the
performance measure process which would allow that person to do an overlook of the entire City
government which would, de facto, be a type of risk assessment.” He expressed agreement with Member
Bertrand’s opinion relative to the need for an internal auditor. “Frauds occur when people are not as
concerned about getting caught. That is one of the conditions of fraud and so the City does need to have
somebody out there asking the questions, and the sooner, the better.” In consideration of the available
funding, he suggested combining this process for the short term until the City’s financial situation
improves. Vice Chairperson Brown expressed support for an independent internal auditor “than any
member of any department. It’s hard for a member of a department to come up and point out any
shortcomings in that department.” He acknowledged the limited funding, and expressed the opinion that
more funding is necessary.

In response to a question, Mr. Providenti advised that the Board of Supervisors would determine whether
to increase the internal audit budget. He acknowledged the benefits of an internal auditor, and advised that
contingency funds were included as part of the internal audit budget. He reiterated that increasing the
budget would be within the Board of Supervisors’ purview. Member McKenna inquired as to whether the
committee’s role should be one of seeking information and deciding upon recommendations or one of
receiving information that is presented by “a hired person.” In response to a question, Ms. Russom offered
to research whether the committee members would be authorized to talk to people directly. Chairperson
Prowse expressed a preference for the internal auditor or audit assistant to work for the committee “and
help ... us prepare recommendations for the Board of Supervisors rather than having that position subject
to another City director.” He expressed concern over an “independence issue.” With regard to following
up on previous audit recommendations, he advised that most audit organizations have a formal follow-up
process. Member Bertrand agreed, and noted that the ordinance provides for an independent internal audit
position that reports to the Board of Supervisors. Chairperson Prowse reiterated an interest in whether or
not the committee members could “talk or not with individuals and whether ... we are entitled to have a
staff member reporting to us.”



CARSON CITY AUDIT COMMITTEE
Minutes of the July 19, 2011 Meeting
Page 4

8. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING THE FUTURE EMPLOYMENT
STATUS OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT EMPLOYEE OR CONTRACTOR (3:38:06) - Chairperson
Prowse introduced this item, and Mr. Providenti advised that the budget includes $54,000. Based on the
previous discussion, he advised that the committee could make a recommendation to the Board of
Supervisors to increase the budget. He emphasized that the decision would be the Board of Supervisors’.

Chairperson Prowse entertained discussion of the committee members. Vice Chairperson Brown expressed
a preference for an independent internal auditor “rather than trying to establish a position inside the City.”
He recommended increasing the budget to $100,000. Member Bertrand agreed and responded to
corresponding questions of clarification. Member Parvin expressed concern over justifying the budget
increase recommendation to the Board of Supervisors, and discussion ensued. Chairperson Prowse
expressed concern over a contract internal auditor based on the City’s recent experience, and the opinion
that “an in-house person would likely be less expensive for ... the product we would be looking for.” He
expressed additional concern that a contract relationship “would be ... seeking to have them produce a
product. We would have much less input in terms of how the process is done.” In consideration of
performance audits relative to the City’s strategic plan, “having somebody onboard full time would allow
a better understanding of City operations and processes than an external auditor coming in on a specific
assignment basis.” Chairperson Prowse expressed a bias for an internal auditor employed by the City.
With regard to the necessary funding, he expressed the opinion that “if we went that way, we could have
some potential of doing something regardless of the funding that’s available. We’d be able to get
somebody at almost any level. ... we would be more productive and efficient with somebody with good
experience.”

In response to a question, Mr. Providenti discussed various attempts to contact Contract Internal Auditor
Nicola Neilon. “She hasn’t returned any of our e-mails or phone calls.” Mr. Providenti advised of a
meeting between Ms. Neilon and Mr. Werner in January, and “we haven’t heard from her since.” In
response to a further question, Mr. Providenti advised that no payment has been made by the City. Vice
Chairperson Brown advised of having spoken with Darci Casey, of Casey, Neilon and Associates, who
informed him that Ms. Neilon would call him later in the day; he never heard from her. Vice Chairperson
Brown expressed the understanding that the last City internal auditor’s salary was $70,000. “If we hire
somebody for $70,000, then you have to consider the benefits that that employee would receive. ... that’d
put it up to about $100,000. And then you also have to consider additional overhead, space, and any
administrative assistance that might be required ...” Vice Chairperson Brown reiterated a preference for
a contract internal auditor at an increased budget “of around $100,000.” In response to a question, Mr.
Providenti advised that an internal auditor would work for the committee and, ultimately, the Board of
Supervisors. He noted the City Charter requirement for an internal auditor, which does not have to be a
City employee.

Chairperson Prowse entertained public comment. (3:48:13) Mary Magic inquired as to the possibility of
hiring “an employee of the City who is not responsible to the City Manager or to anyone but the Board ...,
in other words, an autonomous position within the City.” Mr. Providenti acknowledged that the internal
auditor would not be responsible to any other City department head. “They’re directly hired by the Board
of Supervisors and they work just for the Board of Supervisors. They don’t work for the City Manager.”
Ms. Magic clarified that the person should only work for the Audit Committee. Mr. Providenti explained
that the Audit Committee is advisory to the Board of Supervisors. Member Bertrand provided additional
clarification.



CARSON CITY AUDIT COMMITTEE
Minutes of the July 19, 2011 Meeting
Page 5

(3:49:55) Clarence Southard expressed disappointment “that the budget for an auditor was setat such a low
cost.” He pointed out that hiring an internal auditor, “with the pay and the benefits and, eventually, ... a
retirement, ... the cost would be higher than an external auditor. With an external auditor, they are
responsible to the corporation which they work for and you have a contract with them and, where a City
employee or a government employee can be threatened to be fired if they don’t oblige the people they’re
auditing, an external auditor, you would have to deal with a contract.” He expressed the hope that
“everything is on the level but, as we know, in government, everything does not necessarily run that way.”
He expressed “deep concerns that anytime where a previous auditor has been dismissed, that there’s
something to be hidden. And the only way to prove that there isn’t anything to be hidden is that an auditor
is allowed to audit the flow of money and the situations as they are.” He expressed a preference for the
committee to recommend to the Board of Supervisors to contract with an auditor “and let them go to work.
The funding can be found ...” Chairperson Prowse commented “there is no perfect solution to this. ...
We’re going to have to make a decision one way or the other without perfect satisfaction that we’ll resolve
[everything].” Chairperson Prowse advised that the committee’s “goal is to have an honest, upright, and
thorough audit function.” He thanked Mr. Southard for his comments.

Chairperson Prowse entertained a motion. Member Bertrand moved to recommend to the Board of
Supervisors abudget 0f $110,000 for a contract internal auditor. Vice Chairperson Brown seconded
the motion. Motion carried 4-1.

PUBLIC COMMENT (3:55:45) - Chairperson Prowse entertained additional public comment; however,
none was forthcoming.

9. ACTION TO ADJOURN (3:56:15) - Discussion took place regarding the next meeting date.
Chairperson Prowse entertained a motion to adjourn. Vice Chairperson Brown moved to adjourn the
meeting at 4:00 p.m. Member Bertrand seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0.

The Minutes of the July 19,2011 Carson City Audit Committee meeting are so approved this 27" day of
September, 2011.

WILLIAM PROWSE, Chair



	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

